STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

---

In The Court of Appeals

---

APPEAL FROM ANDERSON COUNTY

Court of Common Pleas

Ellis B. Drew, Jr., Master in Equity

Case No.: 2014-000796  
2014-CP-04-00413

---

**RECEIVED**  
SEP 14 2015  
SC Court of Appeals

Green Tree Servicing, LLC, etc .....Respondent,  
Corrie A. Martin.....Appellant.

---

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

---

Corrie A. Martin  
Post Office Box 14042  
Anderson, SC 29624  
864-245-8895  
Appellant

Sara Christine Hutchins, Esquire  
B. Lindsay Crawford, III, Esquire  
Theodore von Keller, Esquire  
Post Office Box 4216  
Columbia, SC 29240  
803-790-2626  
Attorney for the Respondent

##

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

A MISTAKE OCCURS WHEN THE COURT RELIES UPON AN ORDER WHICH IS VACATED BY A SUBSEQUENT ORDER IN THE SAME CASE.

(Issue 1)

HAS A PARTY MAKING A MOTION PURSUANT TO RULE 60 (b) FILED THE MOTION WITHIN A REASONABLE TIME IF THE EXPLANATION FOR THE DELAY IS THAT THE PARTY WAS UNAWARE OF THE LAWSUIT GIVING RISE TO THE JUDGMENT? (Issue 2)

ACTION WAS TAKEN TO RETAIN AN ATTORNEY AS RAPIDLY AS POSSIBLE AFTER PARTY WAS AWARE THAT A FORECLOSURE SUIT HAD COMMENCED WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE. (Issue 3)

PARTY CONTINUED TO MAKE PAYMENTS ON MORTGAGE THROUGHOUT THE ENTIRE FORECLOSURE PROCEEDING DID NOT KNOW A FORECLOSURE SUIT HAD COMMENCED. (Issue 4)

THE AMOUNT PAID TO RESPONDENT BY WAY OF MORTGAGE PAYMENTS AFTER FORECLOSURE WAS COMMENCED IS THE AMOUNT OF \$8,262.85. FUNDS HAVE NEVER BEEN ACCOUNTED FOR. (Issue 5)

PARTY WAS NEVER SERVED WITH THE FORECLOSURE PAPERS IN THE SUIT. (Issue 6)

PARTY WAS NOT IN ARREARS ON MORTGAGE. (Issue 7)

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Complaint sought the foreclosure of a mortgage covering the doublewide mobile home of Defendant Corrie A. Martin. An Affidavit of Service recites that a copy of the Summons and Complaint were personally served upon the Defendant on October 7, 2010; however, Defendant Martin denies that the Summons and Complaint were served upon her.

The case was referred to the Honorable Ellis B. Drew., Jr., Master in Equity for Anderson County, who held a reference on January 24, 2011. The Court issued its order finding that Green Tree Servicing, LLC was entitled to foreclose its mortgage and directed that the property be sold by the Court. The order recited that Corrie Martin had notice of the reference and attended the hearing. (In fact she did not receive any notice of the reference and was not present at the hearing.)

Defendant's property was sold on March 1, <sup>2011</sup>2010 pursuant to the order of Ellis B. Drew, Jr., Master in Equity. Green Tree Servicing, LLC was the high bidder and obtained a deficiency judgment against Corrie Martin. Subsequently, Green Tree caused the Sheriff of Anderson County to serve a Writ of Assistance upon Defendant Corrie A. Martin on June 13, 2011. The Writ directed Martin to vacate the mortgaged premises within thirty days.

Defendant Martin consulted Attorney Robert P. Lusk during June, 2011 for the purpose of taking action to set aside the mortgage foreclosure. Attorney Lusk did not inform Ms. Martin of any action taken by him to set aside the mortgage foreclosure. About September 1<sup>st</sup>, 2011, Defendant Martin retained Attorney Andrew Gaines.

About January 6 2012 Attorney Andrew Gaines in behalf of Ms. Martin served a Motion for Relief from Judgment under the authority of SCRPC 60 (b).

The Motion came on for hearing before The Honorable Ellis B. Drew, Jr., Master in Equity for Anderson County, who issued his Order denying the Motion for Relief from Judgment on the ground that the Defendant waited too long before filing the Motion. Subsequently, the verbal order was confirmed by the written order of Master in Equity by Ellis B. Drew, Jr., dated March 8, 2012.

Defendant Corrie A. Martin filed an appeal from the verbal order of the Court delivered at the hearing on January 23, 2012 and also the written order issued by Master in Equity, Ellis B. Drew, Jr., dated March 8, 2012.

## FACTS

Corrie A. Martin ("Martin") signed a note and mortgage in the amount of \$1,687.52 in favor of Green Tree Servicing Corporation ("Green Tree") on March 18, 1997. The note and mortgage were duly recorded in Anderson County in Mortgage Book 2574 at beginning at Page 189. The proceeds of the note and mortgage financed the purchase of a double wide mobile home together with a lot described as 112 Canter Lane, Anderson, South Carolina.

In 2008 Martin developed health problems and lost her job. Her mortgage payments went into arrears. Green Tree filed a foreclosure action in the Court of Common Pleas, Anderson County, assigned C/A # 2008-CP-04-04162. After the Court issued a Judgment of Foreclosure and Order for Sale entered on March 31, 2009 in which the Court awarded costs and attorney fees of \$3500.00 to Green Tree, Martin used funds from a Social Security claim to bring the mortgage current. The settlement included all amounts owed to Green Tree. Ellis B. Drew, Jr., Master in Equity for Anderson County issued an Order of Dismissal and vacated the prior order entered on March 31, 2009.

Martin then paid each month her monthly installment of \$440.15 from March 2009 through January 2012.

On June 13, 2011 Ms. Martin found a Writ of Assistance taped to her screen door. She learned that the Writ was placed on her door by a Deputy Sheriff. The facts describing the activities of Martin prior to retaining Attorney Andrew Gaines were not presented at the hearing on January 23, 2011 upon the Motion. Therefore, Martin's

efforts to develop information concerning the foreclosure and to set aside the foreclosure are not described here.

On September 1, 2011 Ms. Martin retained Attorney Andrew Gaines. She called Attorney Gaines several times to find out what action was being taken. He advised her that she needed to attend a hearing on January 23, 2012. Ms. Martin attended this hearing. At the hearing she heard Mr. Gaines talk about a Motion for Relief from Judgment. She heard Judge Drew say that the Motion was denied. She wanted to appeal the decision of Judge Drew denying the motion for Relief.. During February 2012 Ms. Martin obtained her files from Mr. Gaines. She filed her own appeal..

The first notice that Ms. Martin had of the mortgage foreclosure commenced by Green Tree and that her house was sold at public auction was the Writ of Assistance delivered to her residence of the Sheriff of Anderson County on June 13, 2011.

The Motion for Relief from Judgment pursuant to SCRCP Rule 60(b) was filed on January 6, 2012 about seven months after Martin became aware of the foreclosure suit on June 13, 2011. The Order and Decree of Ellis B. Drew, Jr., Master in Equity, entered on January 24, 2011 directed that the Martin property be sold at public auction on March 1, 2011.

The order entered on January 24, 2011 recites that Martin received notice of the hearing and was present in the courtroom. Martin says she received no notice of a hearing and was not in the courtroom. Martin would also say that she did not receive a copy of the Summons and Complaint prior to the foreclosure. During the hearing held

on January 23, 2012 there was no evidence presented from Martin concerning the lack of service or the lack of notice of any of the proceedings. The facts concerning notice and lack of notice are not in the record and were not considered by the Master in Equity when ruling upon the Motion for Relief from Judgment pursuant to SCRCP Rule 60(b). Lack of service of the summons and complaint together with facts surrounding notice of proceedings are issues being presented in a separate action now pending in the Court of Common Pleas in Anderson County.

Following the verbal dismissal of Martin's Motion for Relief from Judgment at the hearing on January 23, 2012 Master in Equity Ellis B. Drew, Jr., issued his Supplemental Order under date of March 8, 2012. The Supplemental Order

"finds as a matter of fact that the Defendant has failed to make this motion within a reasonable time as the hearing in this matter, of which the Defendant was provided notice, was on January 24, 2011. The Defendant waited almost a year to file this motion. Defendant offered no explanation for this delay."

Since details concerning notice of the hearing and activities of Martin prior to the Motion for Relief from Judgment are not in the record Appellant can refer only to the mention in the Supplemental Order of Attorney Robert Lusk acting in behalf of the Appellant contacted Plaintiff's attorney by letter dated June 27, 2011. The letter advised "that there were outstanding issues that needed to be addressed\*\*\*\*" Whatever the letter said (and it is not in the record) the information prompted Plaintiff's attorney to cancel a lock-out that had been scheduled with the Anderson County Sheriff's Office.

During the hearing on January 23, 2012 Plaintiff's counsel referred to an award of attorney fees in the amount of \$3500.00 made by the Court during the 2008 foreclosure action (C/A 2008-CP-04-04162) in the Judgment of Foreclosure and Order for Sale entered on March 31, 2009. (R-\_\_\_)

Plaintiff's counsel did not call the attention of the Master in Equity to a subsequent order in that same case, entered on August 10, 2009, which recited that the prior Judgment of Foreclosure and Order for Sale were vacated due to the Plaintiff (Green Tree) and mortgagor (Martin) having reached a settlement. Therefore, the attorney fees previously awarded in the prior order dated March 31, 2009 were no longer owed by Martin separate and apart from the amount paid by her in settlement of the foreclosure. (R-\_\_\_)

The Supplemental Order does not refer to the August 10, 2009 Order of Dismissal which vacated the earlier order awarding attorney fees. This was a mistake for the Court to disregard the Order of Dismissal, Cancellation of Lis Pendens and Order to Vacate Judgment.

## ARGUMENTS

DID THE MASTER IN EQUITY MAKE A MISTAKE WHEN THE MASTER OVERLOOKED AN ORDER THAT VACATED A PRIOR ORDER AWARDING ATTORNEY FEES ? (Issue 1)

The Honorable Ellis B. Drew, Jr., Master in Equity for Anderson County, entered on August 10, 2009 an Order for Dismissal, Cancellation of Lis Pendens and Order to Vacate Judgment in which he directed that the Judgment of Foreclosure and Order for Sale entered on March 31, 2009 be vacated. (R-\_\_\_)

According to Plaintiff's counsel—stated by him at the January 23, 2012 hearing on the Motion for Relief-- the foreclosure commencing in 2010 (the instant case) was based upon Martin's failure to pay attorney fees of \$3500.00 from the foreclosure commencing in 2008 (C/A 2008-CP-04-04162). (R-\_\_\_) Plaintiff's counsel presented the March 31, 2009 Order awarding attorney fees to the Master in Equity. He said nothing to the Court about the March 31, 2009 order being vacated. This failure to call the attention of the Court to this later order induced the Court to make the mistake of not considering the subsequent order.

A circuit court may relieve a party from final judgment pursuant to Rule 60 (b) of the SCRPC where a party shows the "judgment or order was induced by mistake, inadvertence, surprise, or excusable neglect." Deidun v Deitun, 362 S.C. 47, 606 S.E. 2d 489 (Ct. App.2004); Raby Construction, LLP vs Orr, 358 S.C. 10, 17-18, 594 S.E.2d 478, 482 (2004)

Did the Master in Equity abuse his discretion in denying the Motion for Relief from Judgment pursuant to Rule 60(b). Yes, he abused his discretion by being induced to

make a mistake by Plaintiff's counsel who invited the master's attention to one order awarding attorney fees, but not to the order which vacated the prior order.

**WAS THE MOTION FOR RELIEF FROM JUDGMENT PURSUANT TO  
RULE 60 (B) MADE WITHIN REASONABLE TIME?**

The Motion was filed on January 6, 2012 which was less than a year after the Judgment was issued on January 24, 2011. The record is silent concerning the activities of Martin to set aside the judgment prior to the motion being filed. Martin was not standing by doing nothing since we know from the statements of Plaintiff's counsel during the January 23<sup>rd</sup> hearing that he received a letter from Attorney Robert Lusk which contained sufficient information to induce Plaintiff's counsel to call off a lock out of Martin's house by the Sheriff. Under the circumstances the time transpiring before the Motion of Relief from Judgment was filed should be considered a reasonable time within which to file the motion.

**WAS ACTION TAKEN TO RETAIN AN ATTORNEY AS RAPIDLY AS POSSIBLE AFTER  
PARTY WAS AWARE THAT A FORECLOSURE SUIT HAD COMMENCED WITHOUT  
KNOWLEDGE. (Issue 3)**

I was not standing by doing nothing since we know from the statements of defendant counsel during the January 23<sup>rd</sup> hearing that he received a letter from Attorney Robert Lusk which contained sufficient information to induce Defendant Counsel to call off a lock out of my house by the Sheriff.

**DID PARTY CONTINUED TO MAKE PAYMENTS ON MORTGAGE THROUGHOUT THE  
ENTIRE FORECLOSURE PROCEEDING DID NOT KNOW A FORECLOSURE SUIT  
HAD COMMENCED. (Issue 4)**

From the date of the alleged service of the Summons and Complaint upon me in C.A. 2010-CP-04-03548 on October 7, 2010 through March 2012 I paid monthly payments to Green Tree in the sum of \$440.15 for the total of \$8,262.85. Green Tree has retained these payments even though the mortgage foreclosure was in progress and Green Tree bought my property in the foreclosure sale held during January 2011.

**THE AMOUNT PAID TO RESPONDENT BY THE WAY OF MORTGAGE PAYMENTS  
AFTER FORECLOSURE WAS COMMENCED IS THE AMOUNT OF \$8,262.85. FUNDS  
HAVE NEVER BEEN ACCOUNTED FOR. (Issue 5)**

I'm entitled to be refunded the amount of \$8,262.85; I'm entitled to a judgment against Green Tree in the amount of \$8,262.85 Green Tree should have been barred from evicting me from my house and lot, originally covered by the mortgage held by Green Tree, until Green Tree paid me in the sum of \$8,262.85.

PARTY WAS NEVER SERVED WITH THE FORECLOSURE PAPERS IN THE SUIT.  
(ISSUE 6)

I knew nothing about the foreclosure proceeding not only because I was not served with Summons and Complaint, but attorneys for Green Tree sent the notice, etc to the wrong address. I receive none of the papers sent to me by Green Tree attorney. My first knowledge of the foreclosure was a Writ of Ejectment taped to my front door on June 13, 2011.

PARTY WAS NOT IN ARREARS ON MORTGAGE.  
(ISSUE 7)

During the course of the foreclosure proceeding and continuing thereafter for a number of months, I paid my regular monthly mortgage payment to Green Tree in the amount of \$440.15; Green Tree accepted the payments and gave no notice to me that my mortgage was turned over to attorneys for foreclosure.

No representative of Green Tree contacted me prior to commencing the foreclosure of my mortgage. No representative of Green Tree made contact with or attempted to discuss the arrearage Green Tree asserts existed with respect to its mortgage prior to commencing foreclosure. This failure to contact me prior to foreclosure is a violation of the Home Affordable Mortgage Act. (HAMP)

Green Tree did not send me prior to commencing foreclosure a notice stating the amount that I was arrears and that I had the right within 30 days to contest any computation of my arrearage or debit if I believed that the debt was erroneous. This failure to send me this notice as a violation of the Fair Debt Collection Act (FDCA)

I was not in arrears in payment of my mortgage at the time that Green Tree commenced foreclosure; Green Tree imposed and added attorney fees to my mortgage balance after I brought my mortgage current in a prior mortgage foreclosure, assigned C.A. 2008-CP-04-04162, commenced by Green Tree after I became ill and lost my job. I paid the arrearage, including court awarded attorney fees, in a hearing before Master in Equity Ellis B. Drew, Jr. This mortgage foreclosure was dismissed pursuant to the Order of Master in Equity Ellis B. Drew, Jr. by his Order of Dismissal and the Judgment of Foreclosure, dated August 10, 2009 was vacated. In this mortgage foreclosure, commencing in 2008, attorney fees were awarded to attorneys for Green Tree (see Master in Equity's Order, dated March 31, 2009) and were included in the amount paid by me to bring the mortgage current.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated, Appellant was never served with the foreclosure papers in the suit.  
Appellant was not in arrears on her mortgage. 6,7