THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM ANDERSON COUNTY
Master in Equity

Ellis B. Drew, Jr., Master in Equity, Anderson County

Appellate Case No: 2014-000796

Corrie Ann Martin

v.

Green Tree Servicing, LLC, and John Skipper, as Sheriff of Anderson County, Respondents

Of who Corrie Ann Martin is Appellant

INITIAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

B. LINDSAY CRAWFORD, III
THEODORE VON KELLER
SARA C. HUTCHINS
CRAWFORD & VON KELLER, LLC
POST OFFICE BOX 4216
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA 29240
(803) 790-2626
ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT GREEN TREE
SERVICING LLC

RECEIVED
APR 15 2015
SC Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

- I. APPELLANT'S ISSUES ON APPEAL ARE BARRED BY THE DOCTRINE OF RES JUDICATA**

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This appeal presents seven issues on appeal all of which were previously raised and ruled upon or which should have been raised in the prior litigation and appeal.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On March 18, 1997, Appellant, executed and delivered to Green Tree Financial Servicing Corporation a Note ("Note") in the principal sum of Fifty-Eight Thousand Five Hundred Eighty-Seven and 52/100 (\$58,587.52) Dollars, with interest at the rate of 8.99 % per annum (2010-CP-04-03548 Master in Equity's Order and Judgment of Foreclosure and Sale ¶ 8). Appellant promised to repay Respondent the amounts advanced under the Note. Simultaneously with the execution of the Note, and to secure the repayment of the Note and the debt, Appellant executed and delivered to Green Tree a Mortgage dated March 18, 1997 ("Mortgage") (2010-CP-04-03548 Master in Equity's Order and Judgment of Foreclosure and Sale ¶ 9). The Mortgage was recorded on March 18, 1997 in Mortgage Book 2574 at Page 189 in the Office of the Anderson County Register of Deeds. (2010-CP-04-03548 Master in Equity's Order and Judgment of Foreclosure and Sale ¶ 9)

To further secure the repayment of the amounts due under the Note, Appellant granted Green Tree a security interest in a 1997 Omni Mobile Home, Serial #056276A&B (the "Collateral"), and pursuant to the Note, Green Tree recorded its lien on the face of the Certificate of Title of the Collateral described in the Note. (2010-CP-04-03548 Master in Equity's Order and Judgment of Foreclosure and Sale ¶ 10)

On October 4, 2012, after Appellant's default under the terms of the Note and Mortgage, Respondent filed an Amended Lis Pendens, Summons and Complaint seeking repossession of the subject mobile home and foreclosure of the real estate mortgage. (Civil Action Number 2010-CP-04-03548, hereinafter referred to as "The Foreclosure Action") On

October 7, 2010, the Amended Lis Pendens and Summons and Complaint were personally served upon Appellant (2010-CP-04-03548 Affidavit of Service). Having received no answer, or request for extension of time to answer, Respondent filed its affidavit of default and Motion for Order of Reference on December 2, 2010 (2010-CP-04-03548 Affidavit of Default). On December 2, 2010, Martha D. Newton, Clerk of Court for Anderson County executed and recorded an Order of Reference under which the subject case was referred to Ellis B. Drew, Jr., Master in Equity for Anderson County (2010-CP-04-03548 Order of Reference). Subsequently, a hearing was scheduled and the Respondent forwarded a Notice of Hearing to the Appellant at her record address on December 17, 2010 (2010-CP-04-03548 Notice of Hearing). The Notice of Hearing and Certificate of Service were filed with the Court.

The final hearing in the subject action was held on January 24, 2011 at 11:00am and on January 24, 2011 a Master in Equity's Order and Judgment of Foreclosure and Sale and a Notice of Master In Equity Sale were entered in the Office of the Clerk of Court for Anderson County (2010-CP-04-03548 Transcript of Testimony, Master in Equity's Order and Notice of Sale).

A foreclosure sale was held on March 1, 2011 at 11:00a.m. and the deficiency sale was held on March 31, 2011. (2010-CP-04-03548 Notice of Sale). On April 7, 2011, the Honorable Ellis B. Drew, Jr. executed a Master in Equity's Deed by Foreclosure conveying the subject real property to Green Tree Servicing, LLC, the high bidder at the foreclosure sale. The deed was recorded in the Office of the Anderson County Register of Deeds on April 20, 2011, in Book 10000 at Page 107 (2010-CP-04-03548 Master's Deed). On April 7, 2011, the Honorable Ellis B. Drew, Jr. executed an Order of Deficiency Judgment against Appellant in the amount of \$21,620.62. Said Order was recorded in the Office of the Clerk of Court for Anderson County on April 12, 2011 (2010-CP-04-03548 Order of Deficiency

Judgment).

Subsequently, due to the subject property still being occupied, a Writ of Assistance was issued by the Honorable Ellis B. Drew, Jr. on June 2, 2011 (2010-CP-04-03548 Writ). The Anderson County Sheriff's Office served the Appellant with the Writ of Assistance on June 13, 2011 (2010-CP-04-03548 Affidavit of Service). On or about June 27, 2011, the Respondent's attorney received a letter from Robert P. Lusk, Esquire, that there were outstanding issues that needed to be addressed and the Respondent cancelled the lock-out that had been scheduled with the Anderson County Sheriff's Office.

On or about January 6, 2012, the Defendant, by and through counsel, Andrew Gaines, filed a Motion for Relief from Judgment pursuant to Rule 60(b), SCRPC (2010-CP-04-03548 Motion). On January 23, 2012, the hearing on Appellant's Motion for Relief from Judgment was heard by the Honorable Ellis B. Drew, Jr (2010-CP-04-03548 Motion Transcript). After review of the pleadings and arguments of counsel, Judge Drew denied Appellant's Motion, finding that Appellant had failed to make the motion for relief within a reasonable time. The Supplemental Order denied Appellant's motion for relief and further ordered Appellant to vacate the subject property within thirty (30) days from the date of said Order, which was filed on March 13, 2012 (2010-CP-04-03548 Order).

On or about May 07, 2012, Appellant filed a Notice of Appeal as to the Foreclosure Action and subsequent denial of the Rule 60 motion. (Said appeal is Appellate Case number 2012-210846 and hereinafter referred to as "the First Appeal".) By order of the Court of Appeals for the State of South Carolina, the decision of Judge Drew was affirmed. (November 20, 2013 Order of the Court of Appeals)

On April 23, 2012, while the First Appeal was pending, Appellant brought an independent action bearing civil action number 2012-CP-04-1576 (hereinafter referred to as "Appellant's First Lawsuit") in which she asserted related claims regarding the Foreclosure

Action referenced above. In response, Respondent filed a Motion for Summary Judgment on April 04, 2013, seeking dismissal of Appellant's First Lawsuit pursuant to SCR 60 as the issues in Appellants First Lawsuit were identical to those matters under appeal. Respondent's motion was heard by the Honorable R. Lawton McIntosh on May 9, 2013. By Order filed June 7, 2013, Judge McIntosh held that the Appellants First Lawsuit shall be stayed until a decision was made on Appellants Application to the South Carolina Court of Appeals for leave to pursue Appellants First Lawsuit or until the Appellate Court ruled on the First Appeal. (June 7, 2013 Order). On July 8, 2013, counsel for Appellant filed a motion for leave to proceed under Rule 60 in Appellant's First Lawsuit, and on September 16, 2013, the South Carolina Court of Appeals denied said motion.(Court of Appeals Order in Appellate Case number 2012-210846 filed September 16,2013) Appellant filed a petition for writ of certiorari seeking review of the Court of Appeals September 16, 2013 Order, which petition was denied by the South Carolina Supreme Court by order dated October 24, 2013. (Supreme Court Order dated October 24, 2013). Appellant's First Lawsuit was thereafter dismissed with prejudice by Order of Judge McIntosh on December 05, 2013. (Order of Dismissal). The dismissal of Appellant's First Lawsuit was not appealed.

On March 17, 2014, Appellant Corrie A. Martin then initiated a second independent action bearing civil action number 2014-CP04-00463 alleging violations of the Home Affordable Modification Program, the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, and conversion, all related to the underlying mortgage loan and Foreclosure Action. (civil action 2014-CP-04-00463 is hereinafter referred to as "Appellants Second Lawsuit") On March 19, 2014, Appellant filed a Motion to Vacate Writ of Assistance. By Order dated March 31, 2014 Judge Drew denied Appellant's Motion to Vacate Writ of Assistance and dismissed Appellant's Second Lawsuit with prejudice.

This is the appeal of the dismissal of Appellant's Second Lawsuit.

ARGUMENT

I. APPELLANT'S ISSUES ON APPEAL ARE BARRED BY THE DOCTRINE OF RES JUDICATA

The doctrine of res judicata requires “identical parties or their privies; (2) identity of subject matter and (3) adjudication of the issue in the former suite.” *Ford v Watson*, 282 S.C. 66, 316S.E.2d 429 (Ct. App 1987) *Venture Engineering, Inc V Tishman Const Corp. Of South Carolina*, 360 S.C. 156, 600 S.E.2d 547 (Ct. App. 2004), reh’g denied, (Aug 24, 2004). The doctrine of res judicata bars not only claims that were actually raised in a prior action, but also those issues which might have been raised in the former suit. *RIM Associates v Blackwell*, 359 S.C. 170, 597 S.E. 2d 152 (S.C. Ct. App. 2004) All elements of the doctrine of res judicata are present here: Appellants Second Lawsuit, the dismissal of which is the subject of this appeal, involved the identical parties in the Foreclosure Action - Civil Action 2010CP0403548, the First Appeal - Appellate Case Number 2012-210846, and the Appellant’s First Lawsuit - Civil Action 2012-CP-04-1576. Equally, all seven issues in the present appeal were raised or could have been raised in one of the aforementioned actions. All of the Appellant’s issues on appeal regard the mortgage loan that was the subject of the Foreclosure Action, and are issues that were raised or could have been raised in those previous actions. In sum, the issues raised in Appellant’s Second Lawsuit are barred by the doctrine of res judicata. Each issue is addressed below as follows:

Appellant’s Issue 1 A mistake occurs when the court relies upon an order which is vacated by a subsequent order in the same case

Appellant previously raised this identical issue for the first time in Appellant’s First Appeal and again here. As evidenced by the current Record on Appeal and the

Record on Appeal in the First Appeal, Appellant did not raise this issue in any pleadings, hearings, motions or oral arguments in the Foreclosure Action although it was a compulsory counterclaim. And the South Carolina Court of Appeals found it was not preserved for appeal. (Court of Appeals Order filed November 20, 2013)

Appellant's Issue 2 Has a party making a motion pursuant to Rule 60(b) filed the motion within a reasonable time if the explanation for the delay is that he party was unaware of the lawsuit giving rise to the judgment

This identical issue was also presented and ruled on in the Appellant's First Appeal of the foreclosure and denial of the Rule 60 motion. As Appellant offered no explanation for the almost one year delay in filing a Rule 60(b) motion in the Foreclosure Action this Court affirmed the denial in Unpublished Opinion No. 2013-UP-425, filed November 30, 2013. (See Supplemental Order and Appellate Order) Appellant seeks to relitigate the same issue asserted in an earlier appeal.

Appellant's Issue 3 Action was taken to retain an attorney as rapidly as possible after party was aware that a foreclosure suit had commenced without knowledge

The issue of service was previously raised and ruled upon by the lower court in Appellant's First Lawsuit. Said action was dismissed by Supplemental Order filed December 5, 2013, which was not appealed and the time to consider this issue has passed. Equally, this issue was one that should have been but was not addressed in Appellant's First Appeal and thus barred.

Appellant's Issue 4 Party continued to make payments on mortgage throughout the entire foreclosure proceeding

The issue of payments made under the terms of the note and mortgage that were the subject of the Foreclosure Action, was one that should have been raised and was not

raised in any prior action. Appellant failed to file an Answer in the Foreclosure Action and failed to make this argument or present any evidence of any such payments in her Rule 60(b) motion made in the same action. The appropriate time to assert this argument was in the Appellant's Rule 60 motion or the subsequent appeal.

Appellant's Issue 5 *The amount paid to respondent by the way of mortgage payment after foreclosure was commenced is the amount of \$8,262 85*

The issue of payments made under the terms of the note and mortgage that were the subject of the Foreclosure Action, was one that should have been raised and was not raised in any prior action. Appellant failed to file an Answer in the Foreclosure Action and failed to present any evidence of any such payments through affidavit in support of the Rule 60(b) motion made in the same action. Once again, this was an issue that was required to be asserted in Plaintiff's First Appeal but was not.

Appellant's Issue 6 *Party was never served with the foreclosure papers in the suit*

The issue of service was previously raised and ruled upon by the lower court in Appellant's First Lawsuit, civil action 2012-CP-04-01576. Said action was dismissed by Supplemental Order filed December 5, 2013, and the issue of service was not appealed any further.

Appellant's Issue 7 *Party was not in arrears on mortgage*

The issue of payments made under the terms of the note and mortgage that were the subject of the Foreclosure Action, was one that should have been raised and was not raised in any prior action. Appellant failed to file an Answer in the Foreclosure Action and failed to make this argument or present any evidence of any such payments in her Rule 60(b) motion made in the same action. The appropriate time to assert this argument

was in the Appellant's Rule 60 motion or the subsequent appeal.

CONCLUSION